
 
 

 
 

LICENSING PANEL  
 

WEDNESDAY 26 MAY 2004 
7.30 PM * 

 
PANEL AGENDA (LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM CR5           
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
*  THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR MEMBERS AT 7.00 PM IN COMMITTEE ROOM 6 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
  Please note that the Panel Membership will be subject to confirmation at the Special 
  Licensing and General Purposes Committee on 17 May 2004 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
(To be appointed at the Licensing and General Purposes Committee 
Special Meeting) 

 
Councillors: 

 
O'Dell 
 

Knowles 
 

Branch 
 

 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Bluston 
2. Burchell 
3. Gate 
 

1. Arnold 
2. John Nickolay 
3. Mrs Joyce Nickolay 
 

1. Thornton 
2. Miss Lyne 
 

 
 

 
Issued by the Committee Services Section, 

Law and Administration Division 
 
Contact:  Michelle Fernandes, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1542    E-mail:  michelle.fernandes@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING PANEL  
 
WEDNESDAY 26 MAY 2004 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Appointment of Chair:    
 To note the appointment at the Special meeting of the Licensing and General 

Purposes Committee on 17 May 2004 of a Chair of this Panel (subject to 
confirmation of that decision) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 7.2, 
for the Municipal Year 2004/2005 (or to now make an appointment) 
 

2. Appointment of Vice-Chair:    
 To consider the appointment of a Vice Chair of the Licensing Panel for the Municipal 

Year 2004/2005, under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 7.3. 
 

3. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) after notifying the Chair at the start of the meeting. 
 

4. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of interest (if any) from Members of the Panel arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting. 
 

5. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

6. Minutes:    
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2003 and 24 February 

2004, be deferred until the printing of the next Council Bound Volume. 
 

7. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 18 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

 8. Petitions:   



 

 

  To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 
under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the 
Constitution). 
 

9. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure 

Rule 16 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

10. Any Other Business:    
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 11. Application for a Variation of a Public Entertainments Licence - Rat and 

Parrot PH, 86 St Anns Road, Harrow:  (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 12. Application for the Transfer and Renewal of a Public Entertainments 
Licence - Club Mehfil, 32 Railway Approach, Harrow, Middx:  (Pages 11 - 
32) 

 
  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\7\AI00012726\Itemno110.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

 
 

Meeting: 
 

LICENSING PANEL 
 

Date: 
 

26 MAY 2004 

Subject: 
 

APPLICATION FOR A VARIATION OF A PUBLIC ENTERTAINMENTS 
LICENCE  
 
RAT AND PARROT PH, 86 ST ANNS ROAD, HARROW. 
 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

CHIEF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 
 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 

COUNCILLOR PHIL O’DELL 

Status: 
 

PART 1 (PUBLIC) 

Ward: 
 

GREENHILL 

Enclosures: 
 

APPLICATION, EXISTING LICENCE AND POLICE LETTER 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report gives details of an application for the variation of a public entertainment 

licence and gives guidance to the Licensing Panel to assist in reaching a decision.  There 
are no objections to the application, however concerns were raised by the Metropolitan 
Police.  Following discussions with the Police, the applicant has agreed to accept all the 
proposal made by the Police.  The application is referred to the Panel as the original last 
entry hour condition was agreed by the Panel. 

 
2. Recommendations (for decision by the Panel.) 
 
2.1 Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 

in section 7, below. 
 
 
3. Relevant Previous Decisions 
 

The Panel has granted similar variations to other premises in the Town Centre, namely, 
Time Night Club, O’Neil’s and Trinity Bar. 

 
4.  Relevance to Corporate Priorites 
 
4.1 While this report is in response to a request for a licence, the public safety and 

environmental control aspects of licensing address Corporate issues.  In particular the 
quality of the environment, promotion of leisure pursuits and a prosperous local 
economy. 

 
5. Background Information  
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 1 to 10

1



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\7\AI00012726\Itemno110.doc 

5.1 Application has been made for the variation of the existing Annual Entertainments 
Licence for Rat and Parrot, St. Ann’s Road, Harrow.  The application, to seek an 
extension in the last entry times at the premises, has been made by the Spirit Group 
the operator of the premises.  The premises have been licensed for public 
entertainments since 1999.  The following table shows the current last entry times and 
the proposed last entry times in the application.  The existing hours of opening remain 
unchanged as 1am on Thursdays, Fridays and Saturdays. 

 
 Mon. Tues. Wed. Thur. Fri. Sat. Sun. 

        
Existing  
Last Entry  

N/a N/a N/a 11pm 11pm 11pm N/a 

        
In application - - - 1am 1am 1am  

 
        
After Conciliation    Midnight Midnight Midnight  

 
5.2 Following consultation with the Police, the existing conditions are modified to strengthen 

door policies and to improve CCTV at the premises. 
 
5.3 The premises are licensed for up to 330 persons, the premises are suitable for this 

number.  A copy of the application and the existing licence are appended to this report. 
 
5.4 The Chief Planning Officer advises that there are no planning conditions that limit the 

hours of operation of the premises. 
 
5.5 The Police had concerns over the proposal to extend last entry at the premises on 

Thursdays, Fridays and Saturdays until 1am.  Following conciliation between the Police 
and the representative for the applicant, the applicant has agreed to accept all the 
suggestions made by the Police.  A copy of the original letter from the Police is 
appended to this report.   

 
5.6 There have been no objections to the application from the London Fire and Emergency 

Planning Authority. 
 
5.7 As the last entry condition in the licence was established by the Panel, the application is 

referred to the Panel for decision.  In the absence of any objections there is no rigid 
procedure for the Panel to follow in determining the application.  The applicant has been 
invited to the Panel meeting. 

 
6. The Premises 
 
6.1 Location 
 
 The Rat and Parrot is a detached building fronting onto St Ann’s Road and backing 

onto Greenhill Way.  It is next to the St Ann’s Road entrance to the St Georges Centre.  
The proposed area for entertainments is the ground floor bar.  The substantial seating 
area outside at the front of the premises is outside the licensed area.  For many years 
it has traded as a public house under the name of the Royal Oak.   

 
6.2 Construction 
 
 It is purpose built as a public house and of solid construction.  The premises meet the 

requirements of the Council's Technical Regulations regarding construction. 
 

2



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\7\AI00012726\Itemno110.doc 

 
 
 
6.3 Complaint History 
 
 Environmental Health has received no complaints in relation to the entertainments 

licensing at the premises in the last year 
 
7. Determination of the Application 
 
7.1 Having considered the application and any additional information that might be provided 

by the applicant the Panel has to determine the application for the variation of last entry 
hour.  The legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can refuse an 
application for a variation.  The legislation does allow the modification of existing 
conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no guidance as to the type of condition that 
may be imposed.  It is clear that any amendments to conditions would have to be 
practical, enforceable and meet the rules of natural justice. 

 
7.2 Options available to the Panel for each aspect of the variation: 
 
 a. To grant the variation as it stands.  Any licence granted would be subject to the 

Council's Rules of Management. 
 
 b. To grant the variation and in light of the evidence presented to amend existing 

conditions upon the licence.  Licence conditions may relate to the management of the 
premises or technical provisions at the premises. 

 
 c. To refuse the variation. 
 
7.3 It should be noted with options (b) and (c) that; 
 
 i. Clear reasons for either the refusal to vary the licence, or of the imposition of 

amendments to conditions would have to be given to the applicant, and 
 
 ii. The applicant would have the right of appeal to a Magistrates Court. 
 
8. Consultation 
 
8.1  The application was advertised in accordance with the Council's rules governing 

applications and details of the application were attached to the Planning Application 
lists. 

 
9. Finance Observations 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications for the Council relating to the consideration of this 

application by the Panel. 
 
10. Legal Observations 
 
10.1 In addition to determining the application in accordance with the legislation, Members 

must also have regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
 
 
 

3



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\2\7\AI00012726\Itemno110.doc 

 
 
 
 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 File for the Rat and Parrot PH, 86 St. Ann’s Road, Harrow. 
 
11.2 London Borough of Harrow, Rules of Management  Technical Regulations for Places of 

Public Entertainment. 
 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Shankar P Sivashankar, 020 8420 9605 
 
 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\7\AI00012727\Itemno120.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 

 
 

Meeting: 
 

LICENSING PANEL 
 

Date: 
 

26 May 2004 

Subject: 
 

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER AND RENEWAL OF A PUBLIC 
ENTERTAINMENTS LICENCE 
 
CLUB MEHFIL, 32 RAILWAY APPROACH, HARROW, MIDDX. 
(Formally Club Moonlight) 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

CHIEF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH OFFICER 
 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 

COUNCILLOR PHIL O’DELL 

Status: 
 

PART 1 (PUBLIC) 

Ward: 
 

GREENHILL 

Enclosures: 
 

APPLICATION, EXISTING LICENCE, OBJECTION AND 
CORRESPONDANCE WITH APPLICANT 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report gives details of applications for the Transfer and Renewal of a public 

entertainment licence and gives guidance to assist the Licensing Panel in reaching a 
decision.  The application is referred to the Panel as the applicants for the transfer and 
renewal have failed to respond to a written request for improvements in management at 
the premises and a plan to maintain safe operating procedures.  There is also objection 
to the renewal application from the Metropolitan Police; the Police also wish to object to 
the transfer application. 

 
1.2 An observation by officers on 8 May 2004 revealed that licence conditions requiring the 

use of registered door staff and to the keeping of a register of door staff were not being 
complied with at the time of the visit.  The premises were being managed at the time by 
Mr Suchdeva and Mr Hussain, who are the applicants for the transfer.  As a result of the 
observation by officers the solicitors for Mr Sachdeva and Mr Hussain have indicated that 
they now will be seeking the transfer to Dawn Robson, the current liquor licensee.  Due 
to the short notice period in relation to the transfer application, the Metropolitan Police is 
yet to respond.  However, the Police have indicated that they may be objecting to this 
Transfer further to the findings by the Licensing Officer on 8 may 2004. As a result, the 
transfer application is being reported to the Panel for decision. 

 
1.3 Additionally an application has been made for the renewal of the annual licence.  The 

Metropolitan Police have objected to this application. The Panel should consider first the 
transfer and then the renewal of the licence.   

 
 
 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 11 to 32

11



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\7\AI00012727\Itemno120.doc 

2. Recommendations (for decision by the Panel.) 
 
2.1 Members are asked to determine the application in accordance with the guidance 

in section 8, below. 
 
 
3. Relevant Previous Decisions 
 

The Panel may recall that this matter was reported on 29th July 2003.  However, at that 
time the Metropolitan Police were awaiting a hearing at the Magistrates Court to revoke 
the liquor licence at the premises.  Hence the outstanding matters for the Council were 
postponed.  On 14th November 2003 the liquor licence was revoked by the Magistrates at 
Harrow Magistrates Courts.  Pending a subsequent appeal, the Management employed 
an experienced licensee, Dawn Robson, and the licence was reinstated. 

 
4.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
4.1 While this report is in response to a request for a licence, the public safety and 

environmental control aspects of licensing address corporate issues.  In particular the 
quality of the environment, promotion of leisure pursuits and a prosperous local 
economy. 

 
5. Background Information  
 
5.1 Application has been made for the Transfer and Renewal of the existing Annual 

Entertainments Licence for Club Mehfil, 32 Railway Approach, Harrow.  The premises, 
previously Club Moonlight, has been operated in recent years by Mr P Behimji and Mrs 
S Mihaylova trading as Glass Palace Ltd.  The applicants for transfer and renewal, Mr 
Arvind Suchdeva and Mr Khalid Mahmood Hussain, have been promoting 
entertainments at the premises for approximately three years. The premises have been 
licensed for many years for entertainments both by this Council and by the former 
Greater London Council.  All the above persons have been invited to the meeting. 

 
5.2 The premises are licensed for up to 280 persons, the premises are suitable for this 

number.  A copy of each application is attached to this report (Appendix A). 
 
5.3 The Chief Planning Officer advises that there are no planning restrictions on the use of 

the premises. 
 
5.4 The transfer application by Mr Suchdeva and Mr Hussain was made in July 2002.  At 

the time they had only promoted events at the club and had no experience in the 
management of night-clubs.  At the time of their application for transfer it was strongly 
recommended by officers that they undertake a training course designed to provide the 
managers with the knowledge of their role and responsibilities so as to ensure public 
safety.  Linked to this would be the creation of an operating safety plan for the 
premises.  This approach was initially agreed with the applicants at a meeting and 
subsequently confirmed in writing.  It was proposed that the transfer be considered 
when they had passed the course. 

 
5.5 The Licensing Panel had been due to consider the transfer of the licence in October 

2002, however at the request of Mr Suchdeva, the report to the Panel was postponed to 
allow the applicants to implement the operational plan that would satisfy the Police and 
the Council as Licensing Authority.  This is still awaited.  Additional detail is in the 
summary by the Licensing Officer at Appendix B. 

 

12



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\7\AI00012727\Itemno120.doc 

5.6 A during performance inspection by officers on the evening of 16th February 2003 
revealed that licence conditions requiring the use of registered door staff and the 
keeping of a register of members were not being complied with.  Mr Khalid Hussain was 
subsequently interviewed but gave no commitment for future performance. 

 
5.7 In the last year the Police have raised concerns over the management of the premises 

by Mr Suchdeva and Mr Hussain.  Such is the level of concern that the Police have 
successfully applied to the Licensing Justices for the revocation of the licence at the 
premises. 

 
5.8 At the time of the preparation of this report, the Police were unable to comment on the 

application for transfer by Dawn Robson.  Hence the transfer application is put to the 
Licensing panel for consideration. 

 
5.9 Additionally Mr Arvind Suchdeva and Mr Khalid Mahmood Hussain have applied for 

Renewal of the annual entertainments licence for the premises.  The Metropolitan 
Police have objected to this application on the grounds the premises are not run in a fit 
and proper way.  Specifically, the inadequate management of the premises has led to 
breaches of the conditions of the licence, this continues to lead to public nuisance and 
the threat to public order and safety. 

 
5.10 The applications are being referred to the Panel as the applicants for the transfer and 

renewal have failed to comply with requirements of the licence conditions and have not 
implemented officers’ requests for improvements at the premises.  There is also 
objection by the Metropolitan Police to the renewal application.  The correspondence is 
appended to this report.  The Panel should consider first the transfer and then the 
renewal of the licence. 

 
6. Objections to the Application 
 
6.1 A copy of the Police’s letter of objection to the renewal is attached, together with 

relevant officer notes (see Appendix B). 
 
6.2 Once the date for the hearing was established the applicant and the objector were 

invited to provide written statements of the evidence they wished to present at the 
hearing (see Appendix C).  

 
6.3 Regarding the consideration by the Panel of the Transfer application is to be 

determined at an Oral Hearing in public.  The Renewal application is to be determined 
at an Oral Hearing in public.  Guidance regarding the procedure for an Oral Hearing in 
public is at Paragraph 27 onwards in the attached document (see Appendix D). 

 
7. The Premises 
 
7.1 Location 
 
 Club Moonlight is in a terrace of commercial premises to the front of the Civic Centre.  

The premises are in an area, which is principally commercial in nature.   
 
7.2 Construction 
 
 The premises are of solid construction and meet the requirements of the Council's 

Technical Regulations regarding construction.  The premises also have been 
refurbished within the last few months. 

 

13



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\7\AI00012727\Itemno120.doc 

7.3 Complaint History 
 
 Environmental Health dealt with a rat infestation with in the last month. The Food 

Safety Section has now confirmed that this infestation is rectified.  The Panel will be 
aware that a shooting took place within the premises in 2002. 

 
8. Determination of the Application 
 
8.1 Having considered the reports by officers and the representations of the objector and 

the applicant, the Panel has to determine the application for the transfer and then the 
application for the renewal of the licence.  

 
The Transfer Application 

 
8.2 The legislation does not list the grounds on which the Panel can refuse an application 

for a transfer, merely stating that the Panel has discretion to grant or refuse.  The 
legislation does allow for the imposition of conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers 
no guidance as to the type of condition that may be imposed.  It is clear that any 
additional conditions would have to be practical, enforceable and meet the rules of 
natural justice.  

 
8.3 Options available to the Panel for the transfer: 
 
 a. To grant the transfer as it stands.  Any licence granted would be subject to the 

Council's Rules of Management. 
 
 b. To grant the transfer and in light of the evidence presented both by officers and 

the applicant, to amend existing conditions upon the licence, or to place additional 
conditions upon the licence.  Licence conditions may relate to the management of the 
premises or technical provisions at the premises. 

 
 c. To refuse the transfer.  In the event of the Panel taking this option, the advice of 

officers should be sought as to whether the existing licensees, Mr Behimji and Mrs 
Mihaylova, are present and able to proceed with the renewal application. 

 
The Renewal Application 

 
8.4 Once the Panel has determined the transfer application, consideration is to be given to 

the application for renewal.  The legislation does not list the grounds on which the 
Panel can refuse an application for a renewal, merely stating that the Panel has 
discretion to grant or refuse.  The legislation does allow for the imposition of 
conditions, restrictions, etc. but again offers no guidance as to the type of condition 
that may be imposed.  It is clear that any additional conditions would have to be 
practical, enforceable and meet the rules of natural justice. 

 
8.5 Options available to the Panel: 
 
 a. To grant the renewal application as it stands for a full 12 months.  Any licence 

granted would be subject to the Council's Rules of Management. 
 
 b. To grant the licence and, in light of the evidence presented at the hearing, from 

officers, the objector and the applicant, to place additional conditions upon the licence.  
Licence conditions may relate to the management of the premises or technical 
provisions at the premises.  In circumstances that appear appropriate the Panel may 
grant the licence for a period less than 12 months. 

14



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\2\7\AI00012727\Itemno120.doc 

 
 c. To refuse to renew the licence. 
 
8.6 It should be noted with options (b) and (c) in paragraphs 8.3 and 8.5 above that; 
 

i. if the Panel refuse to either transfer the licence, or to renew the licence, 
alternatively if amendments or new conditions are imposed, or the renewal is granted 
for less than 12 months, then clear reasons would have to be given to the applicant, 
and; 

 
ii. the applicant would have the right of appeal to a Magistrates Court. 
 

9. Consultation 
 
9.1  The applications were advertised in accordance with the Council's rules governing 

applications and details of the applications were attached to the Planning Application 
lists.  Aside from the Police, there were no objections to the applications. 

 
10. Finance Observations 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications for the Council relating to the consideration of this 

application by the Panel. 
 
11. Legal Observations 
 
11.1 In addition to determining the application in accordance with the legislation, Members 

must also have regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
12. Background Papers  
 
12.1 File for the Club Mehfil, 32 Railway Approach, Harrow. 
 
12.2 London Borough of Harrow, Rules of Management and Technical Regulations for 

Places of Public Entertainment. 
 
13. Author 
 
13.1 Shankar P Sivashankar, 
 
Pels_203.doc 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32

This page is intentionally left blank


